## Regular Meeting Minutes: May 3, 2021

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE OGLESBY CITY COUNCIL WAS HELD ON MONDAY, MAY 3, 2021 AT CITY HALL. THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, MAYOR RIVARA, ATTORNEY BARRY AND CITY CLERK EITUTIS ABSENT: ARGUBRIGHT

A MOTION WAS MADE BY CURRAN, SECONDED BY LIJEWSKI to approve the regular meeting minutes from April 19, 2021. AYES: CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA. ABSENT: ARGUBRIGHT

<u>Public comments on agenda items only</u>: Mark Featherstone from Ameren Real Estate in regards to the variance requests submitted to the City of Oglesby for the Corbin substation. Mayor Rivara questions Mr. Featherstone about the substation as does Commissioner Curran. Commissioner Curran questions approving the variance request and how it may affect the outcome of the electrical study and should the matter be tabled until the study is complete. Attorney Barry states that should not be a factor in approving the zoning request. Commissioner Argubright asks Mr. Featherston what the market cap is for Ameren. Marc Featherstone does not know. Mayor Rivara asks if Mr. Featherstone could keep the conversation moving with Ameren, to which he replied that he would personally commit to the matter. Greg Stein asks Mr. Featherstone a question about the building.

Commissioner Argubright arrives at 7:08 p.m.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY ARGUBRIGHT, SECONDED BY LIJEWSKI to approve bills as presented for payment. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

AIRGAS \$159.38; AMEREN ILLINOS \$ 1031.21; BENEFIT PLANNING CONSULTANTS \$ 334.95; CALL ONE \$ 3369.73; COLUMBIA PIPE & SUPPLY CO. \$ 517.43; COMCAST BUSINESS \$ 252.75; COMMUNICATIONS DIRECT \$ 236.38; COMPLETE INTEGRATIONS & SERVICE \$ 1000.00; CONNECTING POINT \$ 7471.14; CONSERV FS. INC \$ 2005.00; CORE & MAIN \$ 4699.55; DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES \$ 311.95; DEBO HARDWARE \$ 410.93; DOUBLE M TRUCKING \$ 220.00; EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS \$ 871.80; ENRIGHT, JESSICA \$ 154.09; FASTENAL COMPANY \$ 175.15; FEECE OIL CO. \$ 1859.44; GRAINCO FS \$ 132.24; H & S CONTRATING \$ 24,055.00; HALM'S ATO PARTS \$ 4.97; HAWKINS INC \$ 704.36; HEYL ROYSTER \$ 2032.25; HUMANA INSURANCE \$ 27180.73; IL DEPT. OF HEALTHCARE & FAMILY \$ 3703.21; IL PUBLIC RISK FUND \$ 4692.00; IRBY ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTOR \$ 1712.00; JACOB & KLEIN, LTD. \$ 5754.00; JD'S LOCK & KEY \$ 120.00; JOHN SENICA JR. \$ 461.92; JOHN'S SERVICE & SALES \$ 56.00; JONES, MICHAEL \$ 97.96; KASPERSKI, DANIEL \$ 300.00; KENDRICK PEST CONTROL \$ 180.00; KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS \$ 723.00; KORN, SEAN \$ 169.18; LASALLE OFFICE SUPPLY \$ 206.11; LOU'S SPRING & WELDING SHOP \$ 45.76; MAUTINO DISTRIBUTING \$ 32.50; MENARDS \$ 1200.10; MERTEL GRAVEL CO. \$ 1243.00; MOTION INDUSTRIES \$ 153.75; NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS. \$ 16.00; RAY O'HERRON CO INC. \$ 196.00; REPUBLIC SERVICES-ALLIED WASTE \$ 29464.36; SMART

SOURCE LLC \$ 3179.09; SMITH SALES & SERVICE \$ 20.00; ST. MARGARET'S HEALTH-PERU \$ 64.25; STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE \$ 846.46; SUNRISE SUPPLY \$ 104.47; TEST INC \$ 257.00; TIFREN, AMBER \$ 50.00; TOEDTER OIL CO. \$ 1392.25; TORRES, JOSEFINA \$ 210.4; USPS \$ 1003.54; VERIZON \$ 189.01 WEX FLEET SERVICES \$

3825.23 **TOTALS: \$ 142,241.10** 

Mayor Rivara declares May as Motorcycle Awareness month by proclamation. Commissioner Argubright makes a motion to approve the proclamation. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY ARGUBRIGHT, SECONDED BY LIJEWSKI to approve the proposal from John Pohar & Sons, Inc. to demolish the house located at 121 E. Walnut Street in the amount of \$8,400.00. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY LIJEWSKI, SECONDED BY CURRAN to approve an intergovernmental agreement between the City of Oglesby and the Board of Education of Oglesby School District No. 125. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA. Attorney Barry gives a statement about the agreement. Mayor Rivara states he is disappointed in the Superintendent for not addressing the Council about moving the matter forward.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY ARGUBRIGHT, SECONDED BY CURRAN to approve the 2021-2022 Oglesby Façade Program. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY CUURAN, SECONDED BY ARGUBRIGHT to approve the bid from R.B. Crowther Co. Morris, IL for Dickinson House re-roofing. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA. The total bid is \$ 53,575.00 states Jim Clinard, City Engineer.

Attorney Barry states to strike item 12 from the agenda.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY ARGUBRIGHT, SECONDED BY LIJEWSKI to approve recommendation from the Zoning Board and Plan Commission in regards to amending zoning maps and zoning variances for Hometown National Bank. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY CURRAN, SECONDED BY LIJEWSKI to approve recommendation from the Zoning Board and Plan Commission in regards to amending zoning maps and zoning variances for RJS Investments, LLC. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA

A MOTION WAS MADE BY CURRAN, SECONDED BY ARGUBRIGHT to approve recommendation from the Zoning Board and Plan Commission in regards to amending zoning maps and zoning variances for Ameren Illinois. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA

A MOTION WAS MADE BY CURRAN, SECONDED BY LIJESKI to place on file 1162-051721 an ordinance appropriating funds for ADA curb ramp improvements, in conjunction with milling and resurfacing of IL351/71 Walnut Street to Lone Start cement railroad bridge in Oglesby and IL 71 from IL 351 to Vermillion River. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA. Commissioner Curran gives explanation of the ordinance. Curran also states that there is a delay in the grant results.

Mayor Rivara re-appoints Karen Watson and Jim Clinard to the Planning Commission; Bill Walter to the Park Board, Karen Watson and Ken Ficek to the Design and Review Board; Hugo Gonzalez, Mike Margis, Bob Stone and Corey Vanshaick to the Police Pension Board. A MOTION WAS MADE BY CURRAN, SECONDED BY ARGUBRIGHT to approve the appointment/reappointment. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

A discussion was held in regards to approving a request from Kevin and Phyllis Marzetta to vacate northernmost portions of Bennett, Swift and Hazen Avenue's in the City of Oglesby. Mayor Rivara reads a request from the Marzetta's. Attorney Barry gives explanation about the request and the effects of granting it. Attorney Barry finds no issue with it and plans to prepare an ordinance for the next council meeting, stating no vote is needed in the matter.

The Mayor and Commissioners hold a discussion for the request submitted from Claudette's and Bulldog's Bar for the street closure in August 2021. Commissioner Lijewski questions if the event is taking the place of the Cops for Cancer benefit. Commissioner Curran has concerns about closing Walnut Street; which is a county road. Kathy Frederick speaks from the audience about the re-routing of traffic. The Council discusses the proposed times and decides there should be more clarity on times being requested. Mayor Rivara states there is no issue if it is for one day. A MOTION WAS MADE BY LIJEWSKI, SECONDED BY CURRAN to table the request to the next council meeting to be held on May 17, 2021. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

A Discussion of wage proposal for emergency personnel was addressed by Commissioner Lijewski and stated that the Mayor ask the matter to be tabled until the current contract negotiations between the IBEW and Police Department are settled. Commissioner Curran asks about the Wage Committee. The Council agrees to wait until the current contracts are settled to address the matter. A MOTION WAS MADE BY ARGUBRIGHT, SECONDED BY LIJEWSKI to table the matter. AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA.

<u>Old Business</u>: smart meters update; Commissioner Curran states there is a discount when ordering meters. Curran states a lot were not ordered previously because of an issue with range; which has been solved. Curran states there is a meeting scheduled on May 17, 2021 to discuss billing issues with the meters. Commissioner Curran states he addressed street signs and conflicts that were found. Commissioner Curran wanted to make mention that he will be proceeding with making changes.

Mayor Rivara discusses that matter of Ms. Paula Jablonski. Mayor Rivara states Ms. Jablonski has asked the council to cease with issuing tickets to her for the time being as she has put in an offer on a property outside of the city limits that she plans to move her cats to. Commissioner Lijewski states the council has been working with Ms. Jablonski for a year now and has concerns that 1) she will be awarded the house 2) when she would close on the house and 3) the complaints that the residents have made about the smell from her property. Commissioner Lijewski states she is not in favor of ceasing to issue tickets for the violation to Ms. Jablonski until there is proof that she has a piece of property and a closing date as to when she will be moving the cats. Commissioner Argubright has concerns about the bid process on the house. Mayor Rivara states Ms. Jablonski said she was the high bidder. Mayor Rivara states the council has been trying to work with Ms. Jablonski for over a year. Commissioner Argubright

states Ms. Jablonski has not cooperated. Commissioner Lijewski feels it in unfortunate the matter has come to this and feels that the Council has exhausted all efforts. Mayor Rivara states if progress is made, they can readdress that matter to which Commissioner Lijewski disagrees. Mayor Rivara states the council needs to keep pressure on Ms. Jablonski.

Public Comments: none

## **Commissioner Reports:**

<u>Argubright:</u> none; later adds that ATV/UTV renewals are due by May 1, 2021and reminds residents to follow the state laws and rules of the road as are dog tag renewals.

<u>Lijewski</u>: Ambulance department had 59 calls and 28 were transfers; reminds that June 7<sup>th</sup>, 2021 is the Pork Chop Dinner for the Ambulance department and that tickets are available at City Hall; the Fire Department had 12 calls for the month; the Police Department had 39 stops, 2 accidents and 23 case reports. Sergeant Hugo Gonzalez has been named Officer of the Month for the sixth time in the past year.

<u>Curran:</u> chipping services begin this week and reminds residents to have branches at the berm. Pool credits will be given to residents as long as the resident is current on their utility bill.

<u>Cullinan</u>: boys Little League season starts on May 4, 2021 and the new score board is up at Memorial Park for girl's softball league.

<u>Mayor's report</u>: expresses his frustration when he hears of residents bashing the City over the rates being charged. Mayor Rivara feels the rates are competitive. He states the City is not raising rates, it is costing the city more to purchase the energy. Mayor Rivara gives a statement about renewable energy and baseload plants. Mayor Rivara addresses a phone call that he received in regards to the American Rescue Plan. He states that the City has not received any of the \$ 439,706.71 through the Plan and has also not received the guidelines as to how the City of Oglesby can spend the money. He states the City was awarded money for fire hydrants over two years ago and has yet to receive that money.

A MOTION TO ADJOURN WAS MADE BY LIJEWSKI, SECONDED BY CURRAN AYES: ARGUBRIGHT, CULLINAN, CURRAN, LIJEWSKI, RIVARA

Amy Eitutis, City Clerk